ITN: Futures Clearing Merchant Services
Request for Clarification

Vendor A.
1. Invitation to Negotiate, Section 5.2.2:
Should we submit one response, marked “Trade Secret Information” or is the requirement
to submit two responses, one marked “Trade Secret” and another redacted version which
will be publicly available?
Response: Two Responses are expected. The formal submission, notating what you
believe to be trade secret and/or confidential and a separate redacted version of your
Response.
2. Invitation to Negotiate, Section 7.4.2 Response to Requirements in Appendix A (Scope
of Services):
There are no questions in this section. Is SBA Florida just looking for confirmation we
can provide the services outlined in this section?
Response: Yes
3. Invitation to Negotiate, Section 8.1 Evaluation Criteria:
Does the evaluation criteria consider the scope of the terms redlined in Appendix B, or is
the vendor decision solely based on the six criteria outlined in this section?
Response: The SBA’s decision will be a result of the cumulative negotiation process with
any or all of the respondents and, therefore, will be based on the totality of a
respondent’s response and possible discussions/negotiations with the SBA during the
selection process.
4. Exhibit 4:
We are unable to open the two attachments, exhibit 4-A and 4-B . Can you please
resend?
Response: A revised fee proposal has been revised with accessible attachments.
5. Please provide trade volumes per product (futures, cleared IRS and cleared CDS)
annually for the last three year.
Response: Refer to Attachment A
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6. Sample Book:
Cleared swaps - Are we correct that sample book contains a pair of offsetting CDX and a
pairs of offsetting ZCS, so each net to zero positions. If so, do you have IRS and CDX
holdings that are more indicative of the risk SBA Florida will hold?
Response: The Custodian post all swaps with a long and a short leg. The swap positions
were all long. As of April 30, 2022, we held 241,985,000 gross notional in CDX and
6,269,000 gross notional in IRS across all accounts.
Futures - There are long eminis and Russel positons on page 1. There are also long
positions in the same contracts on page 4. Are these positions held in different legal
entities or just duplicate accounts for the same legal entity?
Response: These are two different portfolios but are both under the same legal entity.
7. Appendix B: Section 1.2
Does SBA Consider the ITN part of “the agreement” and intend to post the entirety of the
ITN on the website?
Response: Whether the ITN will be a part of the Agreement is a technical legal and
contractual matter and will be dependent on the facts and circumstances resulting from
the negotiation process. The SBA does not intend to post any ITN response on its website.
However, the SBA will post any final Agreement, either in its entirety or with reasonable
redactions.
8. Appendix B: Section 1.9
Application of Ch. 119 of the Florida Statues:
Apart from the obligations established in Sections 1.9 a-d of Appendix B, what other
obligations are imposed by Ch. 119 upon futures commission merchants serving the
SBA?
Response: The SBA and its records are subject to the provisions of Chapter 119 (Public
Records), Florida Statutes (the “FPRL”), and any of the SBA’s records held on the
premises of the FCM or under the control of the FCM are likewise subject to public
access, inspection and analysis pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida
Statutes. The term “records” includes, without limitation, the original documents
provided to the FCM by the SBA, data and information provided to the FCM by the SBA
as well as other records which are a product of modifying, processing or operating on
the original documents, data and information by the FCM. Such public records are
subject to public access and disclosure in the manner provided in the FPRL, unless an
exemption from the public access and disclosure requirements of the FPRL is available
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under Florida law. Chapter 119 also requires that such public records be retained in
accordance with the retention schedule applicable to any such record.
Under Ch. 119, is there a reason why an FCM would not be permitted to mark the
entirety of its (a) ITN submission; and (b) associated pricing, operational and legal terms
as confidential and proprietary trade secrets?
Response: Section 119.0715, Florida Statutes generally provides that a trade secret as
defined in Section 688.002, Florida Statutes is confidential and exempt from public
access and disclosure. Section 688.002 defines a “trade secret”, in part, as information
. . . that: (a) derives independent economic value, actual or potential, from not being
generally known to, and not being readily ascertainable by proper means by, other
persons who can obtain economic value from its disclosure or use; and (b) is the subject
of efforts that are reasonable under the circumstances. (In addition, Sepro Corporation v.
Florida Department of Environmental Protection, 839 So.2d 781 (1 DCA 2003) provides
that “trade secrets” as defined under Section 812/081(1)(c), Florida Statutes are also
confidential and exempt if designated as such at the time any record is provided to an
agency.)
If the FCM reasonably believes that any record submitted to the SBA in connection with
its ITN submission and/or associated pricing, operational and legal terms, includes
“trade secrets” as described above, then the FCM must clearly mark such records as
“confidential”, “proprietary”, etc. when submitted to the SBA. Upon receipt of notice
from the SBA of a public records request, the FCM will be required to promptly provide
to the SBA a redacted version of such records and a written justification of its trade
secret determinations made pursuant to the above, stating with particularity the reasons
for its conclusion that the information is a trade secret. Notwithstanding such, in the
SBA’s view, it would not be reasonable to for the FCM to conclude that the entirety of its
ITN submission would be confidential and exempt from public access and disclosure
under either Section 119.0715 or Sepro.
9. Appendix B: Section 2.5
In the standard process of providing FCM services, Morgan Stanley would not ask for
access to a client’s technology resources or systems. Does SBA envision this operating
differently?
Response: The SBA does not anticipate at this time that the FCM would be required or
need to access the SBA’s technology resources or systems. However, in the event that
such access is necessary or appropriate in the future, then the obligations and conditions
precedent set forth in Appendix B: Section 2.5 would apply.
Vendor B.
Volume and collateral questions: can you please answer below questions? We require the
information to create the pricing proposal
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•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

Estimated Futures contacts per yr?
Futures execution platform/method (EMSX, TradeBook, TT, Voice, etc)? Response:

Current Fixed Income futures execution is transacted by voice or on the following platforms:
Bloomberg EMSX, FlexTrade, Aladdin, and Tradeweb. Current Global Equity future execution is
transacted by voice or on the following platforms: Charles River, Aladdin, and Bloomberg EMSX.
Estimated % Futures executed with SG vs executed away Response: Currently no Fixed
Income or Global Equity portfolios execute futures with SG.

Estimated cleared IRS Swaps month end Gross Notional
Estimated Cleared IRS Swaps tickets per year
Estimated Cleared CDS Swaps month end Gross Notional
Estimated Cleared CDS Swaps tickets per year
Collateral posted to cover initial margin for Futures and Cleared Swaps- cash or US
Treasuries? Cash, US Treasuries or US Agencies may be used.

Response: Refer to Attachment B
Initial Margin Requirements- calculated based on sample portfolio, are they in line with
your expectations?
• Futures Initial Margin Requirement: $4,453,240 - Yes
Response: Yes
• Interest Rate Swaps Initial Margin Requirement: $272,790
Response: The Custodian post all swaps with a long and a short leg. We held only a long
•

position. The initial Margin that was required was $77,524.99.

Credit Default Swaps Initial Margin Requirement: $433,880
Response: The Custodian post all swaps with a long and a short leg. We held only a long
position. The initial Margin that was required was $208,788.84.

Exhibit 4 – Fee Proposal
• We are unable to open the attachments embedded in the Fee Proposal word doc, the links
appear to be broken
• Can you please send us both Exhibit 4-A and Exhibit 4-B?
Response: A revised fee proposal has been revised with accessible attachments.
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